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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B %518 &

For the six months ended 30 June
BZ6H30HLEAEA

2018 2017 Increase/(Decrease)
2018 FF 20176 AR

Operating results (RMB'000) & E#4& (AR F ) %
Revenue Wz 187,446 175,519 11,927 6.8
Gross profit EF 34,505 33,397 1,108 33
Profit for the year EREF 20,091 26,872 (6,781) (25.2)
Profitability (%) BFE (%)
Gross profit margin EF=R 18.4 19.0 (0.6) (3.2)
Net profit margin Farp N2 10.7 15.3 (4.6) (30.1)
Return on equity % e [B] 3 & 16.4 61.5 (45.1) (73.3)
Return on total assets BEEDWE 10.4 203 9.9 (48.8)
Liquidity RBES
Current ratio (time) TEENHL R (%) 2.2 1.2 1.0 83.3
Quick ratio (time) RENLL K (£F) 2.2 1.2 1.0 83.3
Trade receivables turnover E 5 WG IR B E K E

(days) (XR) 69.7 68.0 1.7 2.5
Trade payables turnover B 5N FIBBEERE

(days) (X) 61.7 63.7 (2.0) 3.1)
Capital adequacy BEXFEKFE
Gearing ratio (%) EEAGBHE(%) 4.1 45.8 (41.7) (91.0)
Net debt to equity ratio SFETEE R L & Net cash Net cash

position position
FREE FEeMRN NATEA  NATEA

Per share data BREE
Earnings per share — basic BREAN — & XK

(RMB) (AR®T) 0.05 - NATEA NATER
Dividend per share (HKD) RS (ET) 0.01 - NATERA NATER
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In this Interim report, unless the context otherwise requires,
the following terms and expressions shall have the meanings
set out below. The English translation of company names in

DEFINITIONS

RAPHIRES - RXERBMEN - TR
KB REBIMTNRE - 50E ] Wh X EME
SHRARMEGERTIEHRBR 2

Chinese or another language which are marked with “*" for

identification purposes only.

“Anhui Pu Bang”

N
E

[ 22 BB

“Audit Committee”
[EZZEE

“Board” or “Board of
Directors”

[E=2

“BVI"
[RBRLES]

“CG Code”

[EERTH

"Company”

VNI

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ R AR 2R
“Director(s)”
[E=]

"GFA"
[EZEEmiA

Anhui Pu Bang Property Management Company Limited* (ZZUEAWEE
AT, a limited liability company established in the PRC on 4 August
2015, the associated company of the Company and indirectly owned as to
49% by the Company and 51% by an Independent Third Party
ZRABYMEBERARAR - —EMR2015F8 A48 EHBIK I EREE
AR RARRERE  ARRRN—EBIE=7DHIEEEBI9%
K51%

the audit committee of the Company
RRREZEES

the board of Directors of the Company

the British Virgin Islands
RERYES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules

FHRAIME4prE B EE AT A

Riverine China Holdings Limited (/T BT B R A F]), an exempted
company incorporated under the laws of Cayman Islands with limited liability
on 27 July 2016

THEZERARRAR - 201656727 B REF S EE MY
BHEBERETAT

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the context of
the Company, means a group of controlling shareholders of the Company,
namely Partner Summit, Vital Kingdom, Mr. Xiao, Source Forth, Mr. Fu, Pine
Fortune and Mr. Chen

BEE EMRAFE TZANRE - AR FME - BAARN—AHERR
RoEES B2 BEA - REU BEE - SHEERELE

the director(s) of the Company
KARINES

gross floor area
EEEETE

FOTH B AR A R R EAERE 2018
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DEFINITIONS

"Group”
[REHE ]

“HK$" or “HK dollars” or

"HK cents”

787t s [Efl]

"Hong Kong” or “"HK"

(&%)

“Listing”
[ £

“Listing Rules”
[ EmR 8]
“Model Code”
&7 Al

“Mr. Chen”
[ B 55 & |

“Mr. Fu”

[ 5E4]

“Ningbo Plaza”

[ BRI T RS

“Partner Summit”

“Period”

[ EAA

the Company and its subsidiaries

AR R EK BT
Hong Kong dollars and cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BITREN - FERYEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FREFEBRFRIITHE

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PRAD TERE 2 P E AR T

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

B prES EMARA - ERHERT - MRS AR M B

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHARAIER0PE EHEITAEEHETE SR SR ESTE|

Mr. Chen Yao (FR3%), the Controlling Shareholder
PREZSCAE - ERRARER

Mr. Fu Qichang (f8H &), the Controlling Shareholders, vice-chairman of the
Board and an executive Director

BHEERE  ERER  EFSREFERATES

Ningbo Plaza Property Management Company Limited* (285 i i &5 1Y)
¥EIAHMRAF]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 20
January 1995, an associated company of the Company and indirectly owned
as to 49% by the Company and 51% by an Independent Third Party
BRI ESMEERER AR - —ER1995F1 A20 B EF B A
BREMTRAR  RARFMEDRE  AARRFBZEEBIO%MNABIE=
T EEERS1%

Partner Summit Holdings Limited (& ®ZE&RBMRAF]), a company
incorporated under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability,
which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by Source Forth and 3%
by Pine Fortune and is the Controlling Shareholder

ERIERARAR - —HER2016F6 A16 B IRERBE LB S A MK
URBERAT  AEE - REIRERDRIEBET% ~ 10% M3% - HAER
S

the six months ended 30 June 2018
HZE2018F6 H308 1L/~ EA

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018



“Pine Fortune”

(=4

"PRC" or “China”

[E

“Pujiang Holding”

RinElid

“RMB” or "Renminbi”

AR

“SFO”

[5& 75 R AR RB

“Shanghai Bund Ke Pu”

[ /g oNEERL R

“Shanghai Qiang Sheng”

[ iRt ]

“Share(s)"”
[R%15 |

1

“Share Option Scheme’

[ BB A=t &l

DEFINITIONS

Pine Fortune Global Limited (213G A F]), a company incorporated
under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Chen and is the Controlling Shareholder

EMRKERAR - —HR2016F6 A 16 AREEBE XS A2 FMAK
VURBRAR  HHREEZERS - BRIERIRER

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purposes of this interim report,
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

i \NREFE - AT BRETE - FREES RFIRAE

Shanghai Pujiang Holding Company Limited* (/8@ TIE AR A A)), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 18 June 2007, which was
beneficially owned as to 87% by Mr. Xiao, 10% by Mr. Fu and 3% by Mr.
Chen
EEBEIERARRAR - —ER2007F6 A18AEFBKIMEREER
Al DRIHERE  BEERRELEBESEEAST% - 10% K3%MHE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

NRHE - AR ESS

Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(BHEEKPEERD) (BBEEPIESTIE) - KTREET - fRsAEM
EEK

Shanghai Bund Ke Pu Engineering Management Company Limited* (_/&%h
HRLA TI2AMPRAR]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
30 November 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EBNEREETIRARAR - —HMR2004F11 A30BEFBK I HBERE
FRE - AR REEEZE2ENB AR

Shanghai Qiang Sheng Property Company Limited* (/8384 MEFR A
A]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 17 December 1992,
an associated company of the Company and indirectly owned as to 30% by
the Company and as to 70% by an Independent Third Party
PEREMERRAR - —HEM1992F 12 A17BEPBEIKIHEREER
Al RARNBIEERE  HARCIREEAI0% BB E=FREER
70%

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RARIRAFFREEO.O1E TTHIAK D

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15

November 2017
ARRARR2017F11 A 15 B B RAR B ERT 2

FOTH B AR A R R EAERE 2018
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DEFINITIONS

“Shareholder(s)"”
[BR R |

“Source Forth”

[RBER]

“sq. ft.”
IREN

"Sq. m."

EFEY

“Stock Exchange” or
“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

(B P ) sk [ B R F )

“Vital Kingdom”

X

"%" or “per cent”
[% ]

holder(s) of issued Share(s)
EEITRHOOFBEEA

Source Forth Limited ((REXAPR A F]), a company incorporated under laws of
the BVI on 8 June 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly-owned by Mr.
Fu and is the Controlling Shareholder

REAERAT] - —[HR20165F6 A8ARIZ R E R A A S /AR M H A
PRAA - HEREEE2ERE - BRIERKRE

square feet

FHR
square metre

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEEBMARZAERAT

Vital Kingdom Investments Limited (2% & AR A7), a company
incorporated under laws of the BVI on 17 May 2016 with limited liability,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Xiao and is the Controlling Shareholder
ZHREBR AR - —FHR2016F5 817 B IRIBEEBER LB BIAET MK
UHERRAR - THEEEZERS - ERIERRE

per centum or percentage

Bt

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018



CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER
|
BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Xiao Xingtao (Chairman) B S E (EE)
Mr. Fu Qichang HBHEXE
Mr. Xiao Yugiao BHY&EE
Mr. Jia shaojun BELESE
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Zhang Yongjun REF LA
Independent non-executive Directors BIHTES
Mr. Cheng Dong BREE
Mr. Weng Guogiang SER LS
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence AFERLE
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREER
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence (Chairman) FFEREE(FE)
Mr. Cheng Dong BREE
Mr. Weng Guogiang SEREE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMESS
Mr. Cheng Dong (Chairman) FREREE (FE)
Mr. Fu Qichang BESLE
Mr. Xiao Yugiao BHYSEE
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence EFERLA
Mr. Weng Guogiang ERlciE: bt
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEZES
Mr. Xiao Xingtao (Chairman) B ES L (EE)
Mr. Fu Qichang HHEERE
Mr. Cheng Dong BREE
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence FFERLE
Mr. Weng Guogiang HEREE
HEADQUARTER IN THE PRC g
14th Floor, Jiushi Tower FE E
28 South Zhongshan Road AL B 28 5%
Shanghai, PRC AERNE 1418
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS ERT TS e
IN HONG KONG
2/F, King's House BB
971 King's Road, Quarry Bay HIRBEEBE 719
Hong Kong EERE2E
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE
Mr. Choy Suk Man BRI kL

T B AR A A]  hERERE 2018



CORPORATE INFORMATION

NAE|ER
|

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES EERREK

Mr. Xiao Yugiao ERir bt

Mr. Choy Suk Man BT S A

LEGAL ADVISERS EEER

D.S. Cheung & Co. SRISHR RN E BT
COMPLIANCE ADVISER SHRERN

China Industrial Securities International Capital Limited AR EGR AT
AUDITOR R ELAm

Ernst & Young Tk AT E 7 B
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEIRIET

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. I EEEEEITIRDER AT
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited FEETT (FE)BRQ T
PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND HEHRERMGEBPEERLAR

TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square Cricket Square

P.O. Box 2681 P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR ERRODBFELIE
Tricor Investor Services Limited BERHFTLARAT

Level 22, Hopewell Centre 6

183 Queen'’s Road East ERNBR 1835

Hong Kong BP0 2218

WEBSITE ADDRESS Ak

www.riverinepm.com WwWw.riverinepm.com
SECURITIES CODE = A

Equity: 1417.hk f&3E © 1417.hk
COMPANY ENQUIRES AXRFEH

Email: ir@ppmc.com.cn B ¢ ir@ppmc.com.cn
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The Group is a property management service provider in the
PRC, mainly engaged in property management service for
high-end non-residential properties in the PRC.

The Group provides a wide range of property management
services and value-added services to a variety of properties,
mainly in Shanghai. The services also expand into other
regions in the PRC including Anhui, Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Hubei
and Hunan provinces. The managed properties can generally
be classified into six categories based on nature and usage,
which comprise of (i) public properties (including public
arenas such as cultural venues, stadiums, exhibition halls and
public transportation properties such as rail station and
airport etc.); (i) office buildings and hotels; (iii) commercial
establishments (including shopping malls, commercial and
entertainment complexes); (iv) government properties; (v)
residential properties; and (vi) others (including schools, land
parcels, industrial areas and properties under construction).

The property management services can be broadly divided
into two areas including standard property management
services (engineering, repair and maintenance services,
customer services, security services, and cleaning and
gardening services), and value-added services including
various kinds of consultancy services relating to or ancillary to
property management.

The Group charges fees predominantly on a lump sum basis,
pursuant to which, customers pay a lump sum for property
management services and at the same time, the Group bear
all costs and expenses involved in the management of the
property or facility. On a few occasions, fees are charged on
a fixed remuneration basis, pursuant to which customers will
pay a fixed management fees, and at the same time, bear all
costs and expenses involved in the property management
themselves.

The Group generally charges customers with property
management fees, which are mainly calculated based on the
GFA of individual managed properties. These are fees related
to revenue-bearing GFA. On the other hand, the Group also
charges customers for a particular single type of property
management services or other valued-added services based
on a fixed agreed price without making reference to the
managed properties’ GFA. These are fees related to non-
revenue bearing GFA. In this connection, the GFA of the
managed properties can be broadly divided into revenue-
bearing GFA and non-revenue bearing GFA.

THE GROUP
KEHE

AEBESTEMEEERGHER  TERES
PERGBIFEEMEIREDEEERS -

AEBRTRBENMERESENEEERS
KIBERTS - 2 BEWETZLRN LE - ZAITFE
EZERBEREPEEMIGR - SFLH A
T TE  RIERAEE c ARENEEME—
RRARBEEE RRE D /NERR - B 2R
MEBREXSH BEEMREESARS
EEIA M S B Uk e 35 F A RMAB ) ¢ (DA
REREE  (NBFEGFAR(BEES  BEK
IREARARE)  (VBUFWE - WEEDE KV
HitmE(BFEER ik TXREREREY
%)

AREBR YR EE RS A IREE XD S EH
i EBRFENXEERE(BREIR  #EBK
RERS - FPIRY - RERE - BREREZR
BINRIEERS (BREBARKEENXER
R AR ) ©

AEETRREBHINE - Bit - ZANETPH
MEEEREXN—ZEBRER  RARAEEA
EEBEYELREMS LA RARAX < &
PEEBERT  ARBEZMEFIEIMER - RIHE
FPHXNEEERE  WRKAEMMAEEDE
HFTA A MRS

AEE-RATPWEMEERE - TEREAS
EEMERNZEmEAE MG EREEEmE
MZEEM - »—TH ARETEEE R
PR EE RBHEMIBEREREFWE (IR
EE W EBIE - Tt REEMERMNELEEE)
BIPEtE a2 EmMEMZEER © Bty m -
EEMENRZEMBRA AR D St B2 Em
BRAHEWREEmTE

FOTH B AR A R R EAERE 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R o Lo
T

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The urbanization development of the PRC has been gradually
accelerating since 1980s with urbanization rate increasing
from only 19.4% in 1980 to 58.5% in 2017. Improved
urbanization has led to an increased demand for residential
and other property projects, resulting in an increased demand
for property management services. According to the National
New Urbanisation Plan (B #FT B EE/L R &) (2014-2020)
published in March 2014, the urbanization rate of permanent
resident population is expected to reach 60% by 2020. The
PRC property industry and property management industry
will continue to develop in tandem with rising urbanization.

The fast-growing economy in the PRC has spurred continuous
growth in annual disposable income per urban capita.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China’s
calculation, the annual disposable income per urban capita
increased from RMB33,616 in 2016 to RMB36,396 in 2017.
The increasing demand for better living conditions is another
reason for the growth of property management industry.

In line with the economic growth and urbanization of the
PRC, there will be increasing supply of public properties such
as museums, arenas and stadiums to cater for the increasing
demand from city dwellers of the PRC.

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018

TEBE
PEAEECEES -t NTERIARE S
AR - 1980 F MR SE (L K€ A19.4% » 2017 F
DI E58.5% WAL /KFEEIRS @ F5EFE
MEMEHEREB BRI  HYEEEREH
TR AN - BIE2014F3 AL IROB R
AU SR AR B (2014 F-2020F ) » FE H# 2020
FRIHEAODBMBELEEERG60% - FEEH
ETERMEETBITESBEMBELKTRES
IBIEHNE -

B R R I R HEE) T A AT ST BCF A
HERR BRETPEBERGTBOTEERNE
o BMBBAG A R FRAR2016F/ARE
33,616 LI E2017FHAKRKE36,396 7T ° ¥ E
R FE KA R R R ERTRIER
M m—RA o

REAPENEHER ML ER - 2RYE
(nEYEE - HESRBE %) W HER B g
% AR BEEmERBSIERNBEL



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group, through its subsidiaries and investments in
associated companies, provide a wide range of property
management services and valued-added services to a variety
of properties in the PRC, a majority of which are in Shanghai.
A few properties managed by the Group are located in
Anhui, Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Hubei and Hunan Provinces in the
PRC. During the Period, the Group through its subsidiaries
and investments in associated companies had entered into
365 property management agreements for the provision of
various kinds of property management services for the
properties in the PRC, representing an increase of 28.5% as
compared to 284 property management agreements for the
same period in 2017.

During the Period, approximately 89.9% of total revenue was
generated from provision of property management services
to non-residential properties whereas the remaining 10.1%
was generated from residential properties and other services.
Hence, the Group's property management services have been
and will continue to be strategically focused on non-
residential properties in the PRC.

During the Period, the revenue was generated from the
provision of property management services. Property
management services comprise (i) engineering, repair and
maintenance services, (ii) customer services, (iii) security
services, and (iv) cleaning and gardening services.
Approximately 98.9% of the revenue during the Period were
generated from the provision of property management
services on a lump sum basis. As to the lump sum basis, the
customers pay a lump sum service fee for the management
services and the Group bear all the costs and expenses
involved in the management of a property or facility.

BB TR R AT
|

XK E R
AEBFEBAEMBARMNREBEARIMNEE A
FRTREENY IR EYEERRE KIG
ERE  MERRBLAURLE - NEBEE
A TWEMRPBILZE - AT~ JT& Bt R
WA o R AEBFEBENEB AR RN E
DA BRI T 365TBYETEWE - UK
PR ERBESEMEERRS - W20174F
[EHAR) 284 B % E B ik £ F128.5% ©

HIR - BRSSP 489.9% JYEA B RIFEE
EMHEREMES RS - MR T 10.1% JH2KE
FEMEREMRE - At - AEENYEEE
RIS — B I iS4 BB AS M B AP B SR E =Y
%o

I - W YR BRI MR EERY - MEERE
RBEFEOTE  HERRERS : (VPR
% (YRR - R(v)iE R MREZRY - BN -
Yo gt R 47 98.9% iR B LA B B Il B R WD 5
BERY - REHIME - BFAEERBAA
SEXN—FEHRBE - MAKEREAED
ERRIENEEMS RN — KA RFEX

FOTH B AR A R R EAERE 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B R E A wm KT

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenues from  RTEREFH NI REAMIREE Y EEA S H K AR
providing property management services by type of managed ¥ % & ERIEHIYESBEAE -
properties for the period indicated.

For the six months ended 30 June
HZ6H30HLLEAEA

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
4B AR 2K
Y= Baobk WS Aokt
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Lump sum basis: B
Fees related to STEWEEEmE
revenue-bearing GFA HEzER
Public properties NRYE 47,286 25.2% 39,974 22.8%
Office buildings and hotels WA KE KB E 75,570 40.3% 69,289 39.5%
Commercial establishments HESREE 12,471 6.7% 10,431 5.9%
Government properties SR ES 6,582 3.5% 5,831 3.3%
Residential properties (ERSSEI/ES 18,552 9.9% 17,374 9.9%
Subtotal INET 160,461 85.6% 142,899 81.4%
Fees related to non-revenue TetEWFEEmE
bearing GFA 1R B A
Residential properties FEMHE 412 0.2% 350 0.2%
Non-residential properties JEE Y 24,558 13.1% 29,923 17.1%
24,970 13.3% 30,273 17.3%
Total of lump sum basis (=S 185,431 98.9% 173,172 98.7%
Fixed remuneration basis 4 %1
Non-residential properties EEEME 2,015 1.1% 2,347 1.3%
Total of fixed remuneration basis B4 %42 %8 2,015 1.1% 2,347 1.3%
Total FEE 187,446 100.0% 175,519 100.0%

1 2 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R W Mo

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenue-bearing TREFINAFATABIZYERENE D AREFEE
GFA under the management of the Group by type of stEUZSELEEEAAFL -

properties for the period indicated.

For the six months ended 30 June
HZ6H30HLEAEA

2018 2017
2018 2017 %

GFA % of total GFA % of total
48 8 G482
EEEE BoLE REME Btk

‘000 sq.m. ‘000 sqg.m.

FERHK FEAK
Public properties NRYE 1,542 30.5% 1,437 29.3%
Office buildings and hotels PAKRERBEE 1,486 29.4% 1,500 30.6%
Commercial establishments EELER 452 9.0% 493 10.0%
Government properties iRz ES 65 1.3% 101 2.1%
Residential properties FEME 1,506 29.8% 1,373 28.0%
Total FEE 5,051 100.0% 4,904 100.0%

The table below sets forth a breakdown of management fee ~ TEREHIINFIREARIRYEBRMNE D AEBEE
per sg.m. of revenue-bearing GFA under the management of s+ ENZZEmMET T HKEIREHM -
the Group by type of properties for the period indicated.

For the six months ended

30 June
EZ6 A30HIL<EA

2018 2017
2018 5 2017
RMB RMB
AR AR

Average monthly fee per GFA (sq.m.) BEEEBE(FHK)FEHAE
Public properties NI ES 5.1 46
Office buildings and hotels MARERBIE 8.5 7.7
Commercial establishments HEI =X 4.6 35
Government properties IEYSRZIES 17.0 9.6
Residential properties (ERSSEI/ES 2.1 2.1

BB AR AT / IR 2018 13



14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R o Lo
[

During the Period, the average monthly fee per GFA is
relatively higher for offices buildings and hotels, government
properties and public properties . Thus, the higher the ratio
of office buildings and hotels, government properties and
public properties under management, the higher average
monthly fee per GFA will be. The total GFA of the managed
residential properties increased by approximately 9.7% to
approximately 1,506,000 sq.m. for the six months ended 30
June 2018 from approximately 1,373,000 sq.m. for the six
months ended 30 June 2017. The average monthly fee per
GFA of residential properties was maintained at a stable level
of RMB2.1 per sq.m. for the six months ended 30 June 2018
as compared to the same period in 2017.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group employed 1,294 employees and dispatched staff
as of 30 June 2018. The Group also subcontracted part of
the labour intensive work, such as security, cleaning and
gardening services and certain specialized engineering repairs
and maintenance works to sub-contractors. The employment
contracts either have no fixed terms, or if there are fixed
terms, the terms are generally up to three years, after which
the Group evaluate renewals based on performance
appraisals. All of the full-time employees are paid a fixed
salary and may be grant other allowances, based on their
positions. In addition, discretionary bonuses may also be
awarded to employees based on the employee’s
performance. The Group conduct regular performance
appraisals to ensure that the employees receive feedback on
their performance.

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018

HR - AKERBE  BRWERABRYERE
ZEBEFIABRERS - Bk - RPEE D
NARERBIE - BT ER DR DL G
= RMMSEEEBEFYABESHS - B
FEXEMENBRELEMEREZE2017F6 A
30 B 1L/~ 1A A 491,373,000 F 77 K 1€ 11499.7%
ZHZE 201846 A30H 1t~ A 49 1,506,000 F
FoK e 2017 F R EAMEL - B E£20184F 6 A 30
AIENEANEEMESERERENTIAELE
BRBEHRARE2 1 THEBENKTFE -

ANER

Bl E£2018F6 A30R * "EEHE F1,294% &
BNKEET - AEBENDBHOSHETELT
15 Pl fr - BRREZRBANETHEPT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The Group believes that the Listing on the Main board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 December 2017 will benefit the Group
taking into account that (i) the proceeds from the Listing will
enable the Group to grasp the business opportunities arising
from (a) the expected growth of the property management
industry in the PRC; and (b) the Group’s competitive edge in
the public property management sector in the industry; (ii)
the proceeds of Listing would mitigate cash outflow
exposure; and (iii) the Listing will enhance the Group's
corporate profile, credibility, brand awareness and market
status amongst customers, suppliers, subcontractors and
employees, enable us to raise fund in the capital market for
future business development and diversify our shareholder
base. The Group intends to implement the following principal
strategies to expand its business and create value for the
shareholders of the Company:

° Horizontal expansion by acquisition, investment or
forming business alliance with property management
companies in the markets to which the Group want to
expand its property management business.

e  Vertical expansion of both industry chain and supply
chain in the property management industry by providing
consultancy services and information, data collection,
and analysis services and information technology
systems to property developers and property owners;
and by expanding the scope of services in order to
enhance customers’ satisfaction.

o The development of information technology system on
both database level and application level in order to
enhance the quality of property management services
and for streamlining and standardising property
management services in order to elevate service quality,
improve consistency and optimise cost efficiency.

o Recruitment of more talent in order to facilitate the
provision of a wide range of services to customers,
property developers and property owners in various
stages of property development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Period, the Group obtained the entire equity
interests in Shanghai Bund Ke Pu from Pujiang Holding. Since
Shanghai Bund Ke Pu was controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders, the acquisition was a business combination
under common control. The comparative information which
includes the consolidated statement of financial position, the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows, and notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the comparative period are re-presented as if Shanghai Bund
Ke Pu had been combined at the beginning of the
comparative period.

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 6.8% to
RMB187.4 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018
from RMB175.5 million for the six months ended 30 June
2017. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable by the
increase in the property management services by 12.3% to
RMB160.5 million from those revenue-bearing GFA. Revenue
derived from providing property management services for
commercial establishments, public properties and office
buildings and hotels increased by 19.6%, 18.3% and 9.1%,
respectively which was mainly attributable to the increase in
the average monthly fee per GFA (sgq.m.) for the aforesaid
properties for the six months ended 30 June 2018. However,
the said increase was partially offset by the decrease in
revenue from non-revenue bearing GFA to approximately
RMB25.0 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018
from approximately RMB30.3 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2017.

Cost of services provided

The Group's cost of services provided increased by
approximately 7.6% to RMB152.9 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 from RMB142.1 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2017. The increase in cost of service
provided was primarily due to (i) increase in property
management services income from revenue-bearing GFA
which leads to the increase in staff costs and sub-contracting
staff costs, and (ii) the Group continues to recruit more talent
staff and providing training for existing staff to cope with the
expansion of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately 3.3% to
RMB34.5 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018
from RMB33.4 million for the six months ended 30 June
2017 due to an increase in revenue despite being partially
offset by the increase in the cost of services provided. Gross
profit margin for the six months ended 30 June 2018 was
approximately 18.4% which is lower than gross profit margin
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 at approximately
19.0% as a result of the increase in cost of services provided.

Other income and gains, net
The Group’s net other income and gains decreased to
RMB4.1 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018 from
RMB4.6 million for the six months ended 30 June 2017. The
decrease in net other income and gains was primarily due to
the decrease in government grants.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately 106.7% to RMB3.1 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 from RMB1.5 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2017. The increased in selling and distribution
expenses was primarily due to the marketing and promotion
team carried out more marketing and promotional activities
when bidding for new projects during the six months ended
30 June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately
37.3% to RMB21.7 million for the six months ended 30 June
2018 from RMB15.8 million for the six months ended 30
June 2017. The increase in the administrative expenses was
primarily attributable to (i) the increase of staff costs by
approximately 29.0% to RMB12.0 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 from RMB9.3 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2017 due to recruitment of more middle and
senior management for the expansion of the business, (ii) the
increase of research and development cost by approximately
163.6% to RMB2.9 million for the six months ended 30 June
2018 from RMB1.1 million for the six months ended 30 June
2017 for the development of the information technology
system on both database level and application level in order
to enhance the quality of the property management services,
and (iii) the increase of consultancy fees including compliance
advisor fees, legal and professional fees and public relation
consultant fees, etc. by approximately 550.0% to RMB2.6
million for the six months ended 30 June 2018 from RMBO0.4
million for the six months ended 30 June 2017 due to the
professional fees incurred after the Listing in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The aforementioned increases were partially
offset by the decrease in listing fees and compensation
expense for litigation which were not incurred for the Period.

Finance costs

The finance costs substantially decreased to RMBO0.2 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2018 from RMB1.1 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2017. The significant
decrease in the finance costs was due to the decrease in
average bank borrowings during the Period.

Shares of profits and losses of joint ventures
Shares of profits of joint ventures was maintained at a stable
level of RMB2.7 million for the six months ended 30 June
2018 as compared to the six months ended 30 June 2017.

Share of profits and losses of associates

Share of profit of associated was substantially increased by
approximately 129.2% to RMB5.5 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 from RMB2.4 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2017 which was primarily due to increase in
profits shared from Anhui Pu Bang, Ningbo Plaza and
Shanghai Qiang Sheng amounted to RMB1.1 million, RMB0.9
million and RMBO.7 million, respectively, for the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income tax expense/credit

The income tax expenses increased to RMB1.6 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2018 as compared to the income
tax credit of RMB2.2 million for the six months ended 30
June 2017. The increase in income tax expense was mainly
due to the significant decrease in release of income tax
provision from RMB8.6 million for the six months ended 30
June 2017 to RMB3.1 million for the six months ended 30
June 2018 which were increased by credit of deferred tax
expenses of RMB1.1 million, and offset by the current income
tax charge for the period amounted to RMB2.7 million. The
release of tax provision of RMB8.6 million and RMB3.1
million, represented difference between tax provided under
Deemed Profit Basis and Accounting Book Basis for certain
entities of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2012,
2013 and 2014. For further details, please refer to Financial
Information section of the Company’s prospectus dated 28
November 2017.

Profit for the period and net profit margin

As a result of foregoing, the net profit decreased by
approximately 25.3% to RMB20.1 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 from RMB26.9 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 and the net profit margin
decrease to 10.7% for the six months ended 30 June 2018
from 15.3% for the six months ended 30 June 2017.

Trade receivables

The trade receivables increased by approximately 51.9% to
RMB86.6 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018
from RMB57.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2017,
primarily due to the government organisations settlement
pattern and the long term relationship with them, the trade
receivables for the six months ended 30 June 2018 are
relatively higher. However, the trade receivables are in line
with the historical pattern throughout the Period. The trade
receivables turnover (average trade receivables divided by
revenues multiplied by 182 days) increased from 68.0 days
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to 69.7 days for the
Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
The prepayment, deposits and other receivables decreased by
approximately 52.7% to RMB35.6 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 from RMB75.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was primarily due to
the amount of net proceeds from international placing
approximately RMB50.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 which was received on January 2018.

Trade payables

The trade payables decreased by approximately 22.3% to
RMB45.4 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018
from RMB58.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017,
primarily due to earlier settlement of the trade payable. The
trade payables turnover (average trade payables divided by
cost of services provided by 182 days) decreased from 63.7
days for the six months ended 30 June 2017 to 61.7 days for
the Period.

Other payables and accruals

The other payables and accruals decreased by approximately
7.3% to RMB64.9 million for the six months ended 30 June
2018 from RMB70.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. As at 30 June 2018, receipts on behalf of residents
accounted for 30.6% of total other payables and accruals.
The receipts on behalf of residents decreased by
approximately 26.0% to RMB19.9 million as at 30 June 2018
from RMB26.9 million as at 31 December 2017, primarily due
to the earlier settlement of utilities expenses and repair
works.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cash Flow

For the six months ended 30 June 2018, the net cash
generated from operating activities was approximately
RMB8.1 million. Operating cash inflows before changes in
working capital was approximately RMB13.9 million, which
was primarily attributable to profit before tax for the Period
of approximately RMB21.7 million, as mainly adjusted by
deducting share of profits of joint ventures and associates of
RMB8.1 million. Changes in working capital increased the
cash outflow by RMB5.8 million, which primarily consisted of
(i) a decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
of RMB39.9 million due to the amount of net proceeds from
international placing approximately RMB50.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 which was received on
January 2018 and (ii) a decrease in restricted bank balances
of RMB4.0 million. The increased cash outflow was partially
offset by (i) an increase in outstanding trade receivables of
RMB29.6 million, which was mainly a result of longer period
of settlement, (ii) a decrease in trade payables of RMB13.0
million, and (iii) a decrease in other payables and accruals of
RMB5.0 million. The cash inflow was further reduced by
income tax paid of RMB2.0 million for the six months ended
30 June 2018.

The net cash from investing activities for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 was RMB1.1 million. This was primarily
due to the receipt of payment from a related party of RMB2.1
million, the received dividends from joint venture at RMB1.3
million and the net cash received of acquisition of a subsidiary
of RMB1.8 million but partially offset by the acquisition of
the entire equity interest of Shanghai Bund Ke Pu of RMB3.1
million and payment of property, plant and equipment of
RMB1.1 million.

The net cash from financing activities for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 was RMB12.7 million. This was primarily
due to the net increase in bank borrowings at RMB5.0
million, the proceeds of issue of new shares of RMB6.3
million, non-controlling interests arising from additional
capital injection of RMB0.9 million and disposal of non-
controlling interests of RMB0.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURES

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB178.1 million. Cash and cash equivalents increased by
RMB21.9 million as compared with the beginning of 2018.
The total interest-bearing bank borrowings increased to
RMB10.0 million as at 30 June 2018 from RMB5.0 million as
at 31 December 2017. The gearing ratio (total debts divided
by total equity) as at 30 June 2018 was 4.1% (31 December
2017: 2.3%). The current ratio (total current assets divided
by total current liabilities) as at 30 June 2018 was 2.2 (31
December 2017: 2.0).

Financial management and policy

The management has designed and implemented a risk
management policy to address various potential risks
identified in relation to the operation of the businesses,
including financial, operational and the interest risks from the
property management agreements. The risk management
policy sets forth procedures to identify, analyse, categorise,
mitigate and monitor various risks.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall risk
management system and assessing and updating, if
necessary. The risk management policy also set forth the
reporting hierarchy of risks identified in the operations.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2018, the Directors was not aware of any
significant events that would have resulted in material
contingent liabilities.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has approved to pay an interim dividend of HK1.0
cents per Share for the six months ended 30 June 2018 (the
“2018 Interim Dividend”) with a sum of approximately
HK$4.1 million (equivalent to approximately RMB3.5 million).
The 2018 Interim Dividend will be distributed on or about
Wednesday, 10 October 2018 to Shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Tuesday, 18 September 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 14 September 2018 to Tuesday, 18 September 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered for ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement
to the 2018 Interim Dividend. In order to qualify for the 2018
Interim Dividend, all transfer of Shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 13 September 2018.
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OTHER INFORMATION
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION

The Board is committed to maintaining and upholding high
standards of corporate governance of the Company to ensure
that formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximise the interests of the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company applied and
complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the six months ended 30 June 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF INTERIM
RESULTS

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rule and the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The audit committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence, Mr. Cheng
Dong and Mr. Weng Guogiang, all being independent non-
executive directors. Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence is the
chairman of the audit committee and is the independent
non-executive director with the appropriate professional
qualifications. The unaudited consolidated interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and this
interim report have been reviewed by the audit committee of
the Board. The audit committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters related to the preparation of the unaudited
consolidated interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2018.
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INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has approved to pay an interim dividend of HK1.0
cent per Share for the six months ended 30 June 2018 (the
“2018 Interim Dividend"”) with a sum of approximately
HK$4.1 million (equivalent to approximately RMB3.5 million).
The 2018 Interim Dividend will be distributed on or about
Wednesday, 10 October 2018 to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 18 September 2018.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct for Directors in their dealings in Company’s
securities. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the six months ended 30 June 2018.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associated companies during the six months
ended 30 June 2018. In addition, the Group had no
significant investments held during the six months ended 30
June 2018.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors confirm that none of the controlling
Shareholders of the Company or the Directors and their
respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
interested in any business apart from the business operated
by the Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence, an independent non-executive
Director, has been employed as the chief financial officer of
Top Dynamic International Holdings Limited (2 8 & [ B FR
2 & B IR A 7)) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 02203) since 1 August 2018.
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OTHER INFORMATION
H A &+

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF OUR COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2018, the interests of the Directors in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code"”) were as follows:

EERTTTRABRELTREAM
BRMzRG EREOREAEZ
in

R2018F 6 A30H » EER AL A S H AR
E(ExREFHFRHABBRIEXVE) 2 &H ki
IR H RS (o) BRIEEFH K EEIEH 5 XV 5
FIRSHEBMARTIRER TR (BIEE
%*E%rﬁm%&ﬁﬁiﬂwu ZEGHEER S
EEH 2= NMAR) (b)) B AREESF K
HA & 1491 55 352 {wﬁmﬁazzﬁaﬂﬂz%;ﬁ 17

(O BIRIBE LT BEITAZFETESFR HWIRLESF
A (MEE<FA ) BAARR T KRBT 2 = 1A
™

Number of issued

ordinary/underlying Percentage
Director Nature of interests Shares held of interest
8 TEaE/
=it EEME ARG EE Fribh =B D
Mr. Xiao Xingtao Interest held jointly with another 294,000,000 72.6%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®
SRS HE— ATHRFBERELE
SPEHEE RO
Mr. Fu Qichang Interest held jointly with another 294,000,000 72.6%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®
HBHELE HE— ATHRFBERELR
SEHEERERO
Notes: MIsE -
(1) Asat 30 June 2018, 294,000,000 Shares were held by Partner Summit, (1) 7201846 4300 * &é&(—HRRBRE LB ST

a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is owned as
to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by Source Forth and 3% by Pine
Fortune. Mr. Xiao and Mr. Fu own the entire issued share capital of
Vital Kingdom and Source Forth respectively. Thus, both Mr. Xiao and
Mr. Fu were deemed to be interested in 294,000,000 Shares.

2) All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares
of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 30 June 2018, the following persons (other than the
Directors) had interest in the shares and the underlying shares
of the Company which (a) would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were required, pursuant

OTHER INFORMATION
H o &+

TERRNBROREERD 2 Bm R

~

RE

R2018F6 A308 ' L NAL(BEEBRIIN AR
NE WD KBRS A () BIREEH &
BIEHIZEXVELSE 2 &3 mEBmAR E) M AT
B2 b ALABREESLBHEKNE
36IEMEFE 2 ERM RS :

to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register

referred to therein:

Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
FRriFE 81T
B HERG FribfE s
BRER HE EEME £ q=] Aokt
Partner Summit Beneficial owner 294,000,000 72.6%
a| EnEAA
Vital Kingdom Interest held jointly with another 294,000,000 72.6%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®
=1 HE— AT HERFEHOER
XEHEEER @
Source Forth Interest held jointly with another 294,000,000 72.6%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®
RS HE— AT HRRANER
RIEHEE R
Pine Fortune Interest held jointly with another 294,000,000 72.6%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®
=1 HE— AT HFAREROER
RIS EE R
Mr. Chen Interest held jointly with another 294,000,000 72.6%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®
PR ST BE— AT HEFERER
ZEHEEER @
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Interest of controlled 30,000,000 7.4%
Limited (“S.1.”) corporation®
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings R EE R
Limited ([S.I1. 1)
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Interest of controlled 30,000,000 7.4%

Limited (“Shanghai Industrial ")
EEEXEERERAA
([ EE¥ZR% )

corporation®
R EE RO

LA BRI A R A] R ERER s 2018
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H i & =
|
Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
s 817
B HBERG FribfEz=
BRERE EEME ®E BatE
Shanghai Industrial Investment Interest of controlled 30,000,000 7.4%
(Holdings) Company Limited corporation®
("Shanghai Industrial
Investment”)
FEEXE(KE)BRAR] RiEfEEER®
(TEBEZE]D
Shanghai Industrial Investment Interest of controlled 30,000,000 7.4%
Treasury Company Limited corporation®
("Shanghai Treasury”)
Shanghai Industrial Investment REHEEER®
Treasury Company Limited
(['shanghai Treasury )
Shanghai Investment Holdings Interest of controlled 30,000,000 7.4%
Limited corporation®
(“Shanghai Investment”)
FEREERBR AR REHEEER®
(I EB&RE])
Sure Advance Holdings Limited Beneficial owners® 30,000,000 7.4%

("Sure Advance”)

BREERERAR(ARE]) BEmBEAAD

Notes:

(1) All the interests stated below represent long positions in the shares of
the Company.

(2) As at 30 June 2018, 294,000,000 Shares were held by Partner Summit,
which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by Source Forth
and 3% by Pine Fortune. Mr. Chen owns the entire issued share
capital of Pine Fortune. Therefore, Mr. Chen, Pine Fortune, Vital
Kingdom and Source Forth were deemed to be interested in
294,000,000 Shares.

3) Information is extracted from the corporate substantial shareholder

notices filed by S.I., Shanghai Industrial, Shanghai Industrial
Investment, Shanghai Treasury, Shanghai Investment and Sure
Advance on 11 December 2017. Shanghai Industrial Investment
directly holds the entire issued share capital of Shanghai Treasury,
which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of Shanghai
Investment, which in turn holds 47.77% of the issued share capital of
Shanghai Industrial, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share
capital of S.I., which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of
Sure Advance. Therefore, S.I., Shanghai Industrial, Shanghai Industrial
Investment, Shanghai Treasury and Shanghai Investment are taken to
be interested in the number of shares held by Sure Advance pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, there was no
person who (i) had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares of the Company which (a) would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b)
were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) were, directly
or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying the right to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any
options in respect of such capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme on 15 November 2017. No share option has been
granted under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2018, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the IPO (including the exercise of the over-
allotment options on 5 January 2018), after deducting the
underwriting commission and other estimated expenses in
connection with the Global Offering which the Company
received amounted to approximately HK$125.5 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB104.9 million), comprising
HK$117.9 million (equivalent to approximately RMB98.6
million) raised from the Global Offering and HK$7.6 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB6.3 million) from the issue
of shares pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
options, respectively.
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OTHER INFORMATION
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As at 30 June 2018, the net proceeds from the Listing were 72201846 A30H « F M5B )FEC K&

utilised as follows: BT :
Net Proceeds
Use of proceeds RS IE A% proceeds Used Balances
FR8 TR 2EA
RE FR8 IR iEER

HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEET BEBTT

Horizontal expansion by acquisition, — 3E3@UEE « I & s

investment or forming business ﬁ%ﬁ%’]%%ﬁﬁ

alliance with property management 4B/ i Bt B 1

companies in the markets KFIE TR 42.7 0.1 42.6
Vertical expansion of both industry R EERITENESE

chain and supply chain in the 5 2 A e SR TT

property management industry MAEE 29.8 3.9 25.9
The development of information GEEEEEEEEI D

technology system 19.8 6.5 13.3
Recruitment of talent and BEAT REEEII &

implementation of training and FREEETE|

recruitment programmes 16.3 0.7 15.6
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIBITEXR 5.0 - 5.0
General working capital —REEES 11.9 11.9 -

125.5 23.1 102.4

As of the date of this interim report, the Company does not  RAARFHEIFRE BE] WAL T HH A2017 F
anticipate any changes to its plan on the use of proceeds as 11 528 BB IR =2 A » A D _T?E/Hﬁﬁﬁ?%?ﬁ(
stated in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 November Bt 2| T2 H IR (T A&

2017.

By order of the Board REEGD

Riverine China Holdings Limited HIPEZERERAA
Xiao Xingtao FE

Chairman HBE

Hong Kong, 28 August 2018 7 20188 A28 H
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BmMEMEEK R

= HA £ B

=IAN
=

For the six months ended 30 June 2018

2 2018 6 4 30 H o< A

For the six months
ended 30 June
HZ6H30H AR

Restated
1 E5
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
gz ARETRT ARETT
REVENUE g3 4(a) 187,446 175,519
Cost of services provided ARG AR (152,941) (142,122)
Gross profit ES| 34,505 33,397
Other income and gains, net EMUA R F 58 4(b) 4,115 4,607
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (3.076) (1,508)
Administrative expenses TR SZ (21,722) (15,805)
Finance costs A& KA 6 (236) (1,080)
Share of profits and losses of: FEMRLAT AR)EE ¢
Joint ventures G 2,656 2,651
Associates D EE 5,465 2,398
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R % A1 % F 5 21,707 24,660
Income tax (expense)/credit st (), He 7 (1,616) 2,212
PROFIT AND TOTAL BREFNR
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZHKZEAE
FOR THE PERIOD 20,091 26,872
Attributable to: AT A FELR -
Owners of the parent ISTNEIIIV =N 19,409 27,124
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 682 (252)
20,091 26,872
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBREBREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EESRER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARAREE(ARK) 9 0.05 N/A i F

T B AR A A]  hERERE 2018
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

HIR AR AR & B A R

As at 30 June 2018 7220184 6 5 30 H
Restated
KT
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
6 H30H 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (8&5E%)
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
M aF ARETRT ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE MRE 10 2,859 2,003
Intangible assets BmEEE 11 14 19
Investments in associates REFEERE 39,441 34,936
Investments in joint ventures NEBPEKRE 16,801 15,395
Deferred tax assets ML%RI,EﬁE 11,172 10,089
Total non-current assets EMEEELE 70,287 62,442
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories T8 125 97
Trade receivables B 5 e IE 12 86,553 56,972
Prepayments, deposits BNRIE - Be2k
and other receivables H iU T8 35,631 75,332
Amount due from a related party FEUN — 2 RaE: 5 508 21 - 2,100
Restricted bank balances SR HISRIT4S 13 13,046 17,084
Wealth management products ﬁﬁﬁqﬁﬁuu 14 2,000 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIESEEY 15 178,132 156,249
Total current assets RENEELLE 315,487 309,834
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables 2 SN RIE 16 45,364 58,368
Other payables and accruals H e sIA K EETE 64,933 69,966
Amount due to a related party e — B BEE T 5IE 21 - 3,110
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEERITER 17 10,000 5,000
Tax payable FERTRRIE 21,004 20,288
Total current liabilities mEBRRE 141,301 156,732
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 174,186 153,102
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERABAMS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 244,473 215,544
Net assets BEFE 244,473 215,544
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
R ARG R AR B B B AR R

As at 30 June 2018 782018 F 6 4 30 H

Restated

K&

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017

R 2018 &F MN2017 %
68308 12 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (fez&=%)
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
it AR®ETT AR®BTET
EQUITY fER
Equity attributable to owners of BRATMEAELES
the parent

Share capital [N 18 3,391 3,349
Reserves (Eh= 232,581 206,946
235,972 210,295
Non-controlling interests EIS A & T 8,501 5,249
Total equity B 244,473 215,544

T B AR A A]  hERERE 2018
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
THIGRAFE A R EH X

For the six months ended 30 June 2018

02 2018 6 4 30 H Lo S 5 |

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAME AR
Non-

Share Share  Capital ~ Merger ~ Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium - reseve  reseve  resenve profits Total  interests equity
RE  BhEE ERGE AfEE AERE  REEN &t FrRER ARG
RVMB'000  RMB'000*  RMB'000* RMB'000* RMB'000* RMB'000* RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBT ARETT- ARBTR ARETL ARBT ARET L ARBTR ARETT ARBTR
At 1 January 2017 R01TE1R1E - 60,750 9470  (3034) 8586 7807 56,271 401 6029

Busingss combinationimvolving R — I R B
an entity under common control /%A% - - - - - 45 45 - 45
At 1 January 2017 (Restated) R201761 A 18 (EE5) - 60750 9470 (30342 8586 71852 56,316 4021 60,337

Profit and total comprehensive  EFERIR 2k ELE
income for the period (restated) (£ E3]) - _ - . - U (25) 26812
- 60750 9470 (3034) 858 34976 83440 3769 87200

Non-controlling interests arising 8893 B £ B)E2R

from additional capital injection &% - - - - - - - 200 200
At 30 June 2017 (Audited) R2017%6 4300 (4557 - 60750 9470 (3034) 858 34976 83440 399 87,409
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
BRI A R BB R

For the six months ended 30 June 2018 (22018 6 H 30 H [~
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAREAEE
Exchange Non-
Share Share  Capital  Merger Statutory fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
EXRE FER
ke RHOEE ExHE KRR iERG fife REEN &t B 4R
RMB'000  RMB'000* RMBOOO* RMBOOD* RMBOOO* RMBO00* RMB'000* RMB'000 RMB'OO0  RME'000
AEETT ARETR* ARETR* ARETR* ARBTR* ARETR* ARETR* ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1 718 3349 177,204 9470 (30342 12,29 (1,739) 40014 210254 5249 215,503
Add: Business combination i FR-REREEED
involving an entity under EBAH
common control - - - - - - 4 4 - 4
At 1 January 2018 (Restated) R018E 1818 (8Z3]) 3349 177,204 9470 (30342 12,29 (1,739) 40,055 210,295 5249 215,544
Profit and total comprehensive ERENR2ANGEE
income for the year - - - - - - 19409 19,409 682 20,091
Disposal of Non-controlling interests 11 € FE2 i - - 14 - - - - 14 752 766
Issue of shares for the Iniial EYINE S
Public Offering (*1PO") ([BERAREEDFARG 2 624 - - - - - 6306 - 6306
Further acquisition of interests E-SREREL TR
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 960 960
Non-controlling interest arising from - EE5h X BE £ M3 ER
additional capital injection - - - - - - - - 858 858
Deer distribution to the then RfmERERRE AR
equity holder Pk - - - - - - (40) (40) - (40)
Exchange difference related to HANEEEBNERZR
foreign operation - - - - - (12 - (12) - (13)
At 30 June 2018 (Unaudited) R2018%6 A30H (REER) 3391 183,468 9484 (30342 12,29 (1751) 59424 235972 8501 244473
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * M2018F 6 4308  ZERHEERBELEEMBFEMRRE

RMB232,581,000 in the consolidated statements of financial position
as at 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017: RMB83,440,000).

AR A R AR 232,581,0007T (201746 A308 -
AR 83,440,000 7T) °

HOTHR BN ARE A ]/ R EARE 2018
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

A H Feﬁ Hir IR mER

&l 5 20184

EENIENREEE

For the six months
ended 30 June

BZEZ6HA30HLAEA

Restated
&5
2018 2017
2018 FF 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARSTT ARETE
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (fe&E%)
CASH FLOWS FROM REKETHNERERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 75 A1 A 21,707 24,660
Adjustments for: AT RIBAERE
Finance costs BhE B 6 236 1,080
Share of profits and losses of: DA T AR
Joint ventures BEDE (2,656) (2,651)
Associates B3 (5,465) (2,398)
Interest income FBEU A 4(b) (229) (384)
Depreciation of items of property, ME - BE M
plant and equipment RBEEE 5(c) 267 242
Amortisation of intangible assets Wy B ERH 5(c) 5 15
Listing expenses sl 53 5(c) - 1,050
Net loss on disposal of items of HEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment, net RBIEE BEFE 5(c) 1 -
13,866 21,614
Increase in restricted bank balances IR G R TAE BRIE AN 4,038 3,638
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEEm, wd (28) 19
Increase in trade receivables Z 5 FE W GRIBIE N (29,581) (8,349)
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, TERRIE - e REM
deposits and other receivables U ZRIE R A, (1 hn) 39,858 (2,866)
Decrease in trade payables B Z RN FRIER L (13,004) (1,388)
Decrease in other payables E th & RIE K
and accruals fEET & AR (5,033) (5,797)
Cash flows generated from operations &2 EBAEREESRE 10,116 6,871
Mainland China corporate income B & B At RS H
tax paid (1,983) (3,198)
Net cash flows from KETBMERENEFHE
operating activities 8,133 3,673
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
5

CASH FLOWS
ARl enER

&l 5 20184

A 30 H oS (i 5

For the six months

ended

30 June

BZEZ6HA30HLAEA

Restated
K&
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
Notes RMB'000 RMB’'000
HtaE ARETT ARETT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (fez5t%)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHFERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYE  MENMEREER
and equipment (1,109) (107)
Business combination involving an B R —EREESEERN
entity under common control Ei S (3,110) -
Dividends received from joint ventures UWER R 5 & SR MR E 1,250 3,650
Acquisition of a subsidiary, WEEHE A Tﬁﬁuﬁﬁi
cash received 1,788 -
Acquisition of subsidiary, cash paid WEEMT B AR & (40) -
Repayments from related parties, net KB R ERURRE 2,100 30,112
Subscription of wealth REVEERER
management products (6,000) (4,000)
Redemption of wealth EOiEEEEM
management products 6,000 -
Interest received EHFE 229 384
Net cash flows from investing activities & & /ZBFTEIR & M= F5A 1,108 30,039
CASH FLOWS FROM BMETHAERSRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank loans RITER R EALER
and other borrowings ﬁﬁ?%'%’/’\ 10,000 -
Repayment of bank loans ERRITERREMER
and other borrowings (5,000) (10,000)
Non-controlling interests arising from BINEEEERIEIE R
additional capital injection 858 200
Disposal of Non-controlling interests & IR AR 766 -
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS 708 6,306 -
Listing expenses EHAX - (745)
Deem distribution to the then RIEMERERFEA
equity holder YEH 7K (40) -
Interest paid ERFLE (236) (1,080)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEFBE(FTR)
financing activities REnEFHE 12,654 (11,625)
TR A R A n] ) R ERERE 2018
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

a5 0 4= A
P HI G AR S RER
For the six months ended 30 June 2018 #{ £ 20184 6 H 30 H |7

For the six months
ended 30 June

HZ6 A30H LLAEA
Restated
K E5
2018 2017
2018 2017 6
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥ETR ARBTT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (fe&E%)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRASESEYEZNTFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 21,895 22,087
Cash and cash equivalents at HynRe KA EEY
beginning of period 156,249 79,575
Effect of foreign exchange rate change [EXEFHHZE (12) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT %*E’Jﬁﬁ&iﬂﬁ%{ﬁ%
END OF PERIOD 178,132 101,662
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH REeRBEEZENERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B4 NIR{T4EE 178,132 101,662
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2.1

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Riverine China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 11 December 2017 (the “Listing”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
business of property management services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the
“Directors”), the holding company of the Company is
Partner Summit Holdings Limited (the “Parent”), a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI").
The ultimate controlling shareholders of the Company
are Mr. Xiao Xing Tao, Mr. Fu Qi Chang and Mr. Chen
Yao (together the “Controlling Shareholders”).

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
PREPARATION

The interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2018 (the
“Reporting Period”) have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS"”) 34
Interim Financial Reporting issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The interim condensed consolidated financial
statements do not include all the information and
disclosures required in the annual financial statements,
and should be read in conjunction with the Group’s
annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017, which have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs").

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARG B4R & B 15 AR MY R

1.

2.1

As at 30 June 2018 722018 % 6 5 30 H]

AR REBEER

IR BIERABR AR ([ARAAE]) RIEF
EMRBERREEREREIMN I RESR
RERAT c RARIM M ER MU A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands © KR Al FR2017F 12 A11BESE
BEMAERZMBRAR (TR ERLE
m Ll e

ARRREMBRAR (KB AEAER]) X
BETPEARAMB(HEDREDES
IBARFS HEAE o

ARBEF(EZDRA  AARWEK
RAREREBRBERAR (AR —
MERBRAES((RBELES ] KL
AT ARBMNREERBRRSE %
S BHERERRERLE (S ER
PR e

2R m A

HZE2018F6 A308 1E/5E A ([ IR 1)
K SRR A SRR IR BB B g5t
fae((EEe:tm e ]) BhnEEe
FFERI([ BB SR F345% [ HARS
BHE ] RE - ZEFBHREAARKE (T A
RE DR BRIESEHRE - FENNEY
MERAAZRERLTIT -

FHERSAM SRR TEERREF
VB RERMBENMBEERRFEEER -
WEERER SV KREEN(EBNHB
WMELENDRENAEEEE2017F12 A
3N BIEFENFEYEHRE —HHE -

AL AR AR/ AR 2018
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A HA RS R 47 & B 1% SR R MY 5T
H 30 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

2.2 SRR RBEZ2EE

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the interim condensed consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of
the Group’s annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017, except for the adoption of

HETP BRSSP ERERMIEMAN ST

BERERUAEBRHZ2017F12A31H
FENFEMBRRATKBEE 2 #
HHR2018F 1 A1 HARM T ER K
ZRERIN  EEHOT

the new standards and interpretations as of 1 January
2018, noted below:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'
Amendments to HKFRS 2 (lassification and Measurement of
Share-based
Payment Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1
2014-2016 Cycle and HKAS 28'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

BRBRRERNZEOR
BRABREEAE 5%

R
EIRACHEY

BREHREER
F45 (BT

R
F15% (B3%)

BRBHREER
FA0% (B3 E)

FE(ERRRaEEE
ZE8)-2EENE

J014EZ 0165558
FEAE

SHIA
RaEPENINE'

RO BERNFRGH B2

ERE RS ERZ4RRRAN
B HERE RS ERZ9R
2BIA

BRI REENZ 15ERAEF
ANBRENEE

BiREnz

IEZEREIRE

BERRAENZ 1 EREASE
I 8FHET

! 20184 1 A1 A3k 2 & 51480 4F & BAfE A 3K

The adoption of these revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018
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2.3

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?®
HKFRS 16 Leases'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that
these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 B R AR AR & B 1% R B AT

As at 30 June 2018 72018 5 6 4 30 H|

2.3 O MM {E 1 o R0 B 5B BT 3 38
=]

AEBERNZFMHRREAATNEEM
BRERERNIR REETEBMBERE

8 -

ot EERESEN B
£98(614)

SEIBHSENENE  AAERARETASI SRR
REBRiE pEgEp

£28% (201 E) (55
EANKRLENE 168 HE

FE(ARMHRERE  FEREENTEEL
Z88)-2REBH
BEMBASENR R ARAY

B eE BEGAEPENRIER
EYEACHEY
DI5EZ017 508 BETRREENE 5 BATK
FEE FLRBZEN5 -
BAGERE 125

REBEIEAE 55T
! R2019F 1 A1 B3k z & 51880 & B A 3K
2 202191 A1 Bz & FIARFE BRI AR

S MARERREIEM A - AR

AEBRIEFE B RRAZ SR R EIE
FIREVMBHEENNTE - BERANA
b AEERBLFENI REETREY
BRELNTAAIREEHARBENZERX
BRBARNBREATE -
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

aak:t

As at 30 June 2018 7320184

ARG R 4R B BT S ¥R R I ak
430 H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is not organised
into business units based on their services and the
Group has only one reportable operating segment
which is engaged in property management services.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the above reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue and operating
profits were generated from providing property
management services in Mainland China and over 90%
of the Group's identifiable assets and liabilities were
located in Mainland China, no geographical information
in accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is
presented.

Information about major customers

Since none of the Group's sales to a single customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's total
revenue, no information about major customers in
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is
presented.

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R HAR RR AR & BT S SR R M 5

As at 30 June 2018 782018 F 6 4 30 H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 4. Uk - Bk A 2 Uk 355 58

Revenue represents the value of services rendered. W 4s ;ﬂ,jﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is W5 s Hapl A RUZFZES M ¢
as follows:

(a) Revenue: (a) Wz :

For the six months
ended 30 June
EZ6H30H1IEAEA

2018 2017

2018 F 20174
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (f&FE%)
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Property management services BHHYEEEREWA
income on the lump sum basis 185,431 173,172
Property management services il 10 26 & 38 RS A
income on the fixed
remuneration basis 2,015 2,347
187,446 175,519
(b) Other income and gains, net: (b) HAbUW AR Uz FEE -
For the six months
ended 30 June
BZ6 A30HIE<EA
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEX) (&%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®TE
Bank interest income RITH B A 229 384
Government grants* T i Al * 3,240 4,188
Others Hi 646 35
4,115 4,607
* Government grants include various subsidies received by * BT 6 Bh /80 45 7N 2 B 10 48 78 Bk 7T A g
the Group from the relevant government bodies. There BHZIEME - ESBZS BN R
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to ER IS EEIE -

these grants.

T B AR A A]  hERERE 2018

43



44

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T HAR RA 4R & B A5 R BT o

As at 30 June 2018 7320184

5.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after

charging:

A 30 H

5. BR®iATR A
AL BRBLATE R TR TS S RIEGH

For the six months
ended 30 June
HZE6H30H AR

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARBTT ARETET
(a) Cost of sales: (a) SHE R :
Cost of services provided REAR TS HI AL A 152,941 142,122
(b) Employee benefit expenses  (b) EEERIEX
(including Directors’ and chief (BRESERFETHA
executive’s remuneration): EE) :
Wages and salaries ITERF® 40,910 41,658
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFH B
(defined contribution (REMHFKRETED) -
scheme), social welfare HERAREMERN
and other welfare 15,407 15,019
56,317 56,677
(c) Other items: (c) Hfb1EE :
Depreciation of items of ME - WEREE
property, plant HEWE
and equipment 10 267 242
Amortisation of mEEESH
intangible assets 1" 5 15
Minimum lease payments KEAEE T HE
under operating leases MERK 975 1,073
Bank charges RITWE 50 40
Auditor’s remuneration ZEAIN S 230 433
Office expenses WAERZ 584 710
Listing expenses EHRAX - 1,050
Research and W EE R <
development cost 2,889 1,056
Compensation expense AR EREZ
for litigation - 1,280
Net loss on disposal of items of HEE - BERZE
property, plant 15 B B8 F5E
and equipment 1 -

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018



6.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= +
P HARGER 4R & B A5 R MY AT
H 30 H
FINANCE COSTS 6. RIERAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKRASHTMT ¢
For the six months
ended 30 June
HZ6 A30H1<EAH
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&&= =%)
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®BTT AR®TET
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITERFEFAX 236 1,080
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 7. FRiE¥iXH

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Company and
its subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
are not subject to any income tax.

Subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is subject to
profits tax at the rate of 16.5% (2017:16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the six months ended 30 June 2018.

In accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the People’s Republic of China, subsidiaries established
in the PRC were subject to the income tax rate of 25%
(2017:25%) during the six months ended 30 June
2018.

RIEFESHENRERLESHNRR MR
Bl RABIREREBE LB EMAL
HO B A B B R RIS A

EEBEMAK LM ERRBEE16.5%
(20174 : 16.5%) B EHA N FH - R
REBREZE2018F6 A30HIEANEAAE
EBVEELERB N A ERDE
FISTIGT IR -

BEFEARANMBECEMEGH L RE
F2018F6 A30H IEAEA - RABIRKSL
BB A R M PTIS TR IR R 5 25% (2017 F -
25%) °

ST AR B AR AT/ FREAFRE 2018
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F EARS B4R & BT IS R MY 5
[Acat30 une 2018 2015 = 6 % S0

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
Tax on the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
comprehensive income represents:

FEHZH @
Rz E% R ERE R NOTIERS

For the six months
ended 30 June
EZ6 HA30HLEAEAR

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 F
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (&)
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRE AR%¥TR

Current Mainland China corporate BNERAR B b 1 SE TS B
income tax
Charge for the period HR X 2,699 (1,144)
Deferred tax EREF IR (1,083) (1,068)
Total tax charge for the period HRFIES LR 1,616 (2,212)
8. DIVIDENDS [ 3=8
For the six months
ended 30 June
EZ6HA30HLEAEA
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETET
Proposed interim dividend for 2018: 2018 FHERHPEAMR S -

HK 1.0 cents 1.0 781U

3,535 N/A N5

The Board has approved to pay an interim dividend of
HK1.0 cents per Share for the six months ended 30
June 2018 (the “2018 Interim Dividend”) with a sum of
approximately HK$4.1 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB3.5 million).

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018
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10.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

+

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HR R A ﬁé%%ﬁ%%

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 9. B RREEREZMBEAELSR
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE P
PARENT
The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is SRERBR S INIENT AT T@EST
based on the profit for the period attributable to the B AE(EERNET AR 19,409,000 7T &
ordinary equity holders of the parent of NI e | J]X EI‘] hnokE 19
RMB19,409,000 and the weighted average number of 404,888,889 fx X H st &
ordinary shares of 404,888,889 in issue during the
period.
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in REBNZZ PR EBEBED 3T
issue during these periods. SERE o
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10. ¥ - BERZE
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
6 H30H 12 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RRER) (&%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR®BTET
Carrying amount at 1 January m1A1BREEE 2,003 2,341
Additions NE 1,124 700
Depreciation provided during HFANFHRITE
the period/year (267) (551)
Disposals e (1) (487)
Carrying amount at 20186 A30H,
30 June 2018/31 December 2017 2017912 A 31 BWEREE 2,859 2,003

T B AR A A]  hERERE 2018
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

aak:t

As at 30 June 2018 7320184

11.

12.

ARG R 4R B BT S ¥R R I ak
430 H

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1. BEEE

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4F
6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (EEZ)
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETn ARBTT
Software B
Carrying amount at 1 January »1 A1 BEREREE 19 47
Depreciation provided during B FREHRITE
the period/year (5) (28)
Carrying amount at 20186 A30H,
30 June 2018/31 December 2017 2017412 A31 BMEREE 14 19
TRADE RECEIVABLES B 5 RBWRIE
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
M 201845 2017
6 H30H 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&EZ)
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AR%ETT
Trade receivables B 5 eI TE 86,553 56,972
The Group'’s trading terms with its customers are mainly AEBEEZEFHNBESBRIFTEREE B

on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance in normally required. The credit period is
generally 10 days, extending up to three months for
major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR HA 75 A KAW%%%W£

12. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 12. E%FELI& RIE (48)
An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end NIMEHKR BHENFTEREZAHN

of the reporting periods, based on the invoice date, is BRES OO -
as follows:

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
M 2018 F 2017 5
6 A30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (&)
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTET
Within 3 months 3EARA 72,389 49,977
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 8,856 3,204
More than 6 months but less than 1 year #B:@B6{EAFEBEDN14F 2,837 943
Over 1 year il 1E 2,471 2,848
86,553 56,972

THAE R S HEREIEREN B P U FIR

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is BRE DTN T ¢
as follows:

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
M 2018 5 2017
6 H30H 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMTT ARETT
Neither past due nor impaired BE AR 38 A U R e (B 72,389 49,977
Less than 1 month past due AL 1EA 1,301 1,619
1 to 3 months past due BHI1 =31 A 7,555 1,585
More than 3 months past due 0 B R A 3 1E A 5,308 3,791
86,553 56,972

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

BE R 8 B IR AR R B O R M SRR T

BENGENEPBR -

LR BB R AR/ PEAFRE 2018



NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F EARS B4R & BT IS R MY 5

12. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is made in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

13. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

12.

13.

ESEWRIE S
BEERBENERZES M AEERET
BATHKERITNEFE - REBEBAELER ' A
REBEE X ESE KRS MESRTIERA
ARSI E c AR EEREVERZE
ERRET IR E RS -

PRI R 1T 4 B

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017

R2018 &F MN2017 5
68308 12 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (&EZ)
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRE AR¥TRT

Restricted bank balances received WEEERMESIEREH

from residents for property ZIR BRI TAS

management services

13,046 17,084

Restricted bank balances earn interest at interest rates
stipulated by the respective financial institutions. The
restricted bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

14. WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRODUCTS

14.

XRBISRITHERIZ S S RBBR TN X
REA B - XRBIRITER D FREEE
R N T B3 R ARV RTT

EEEEM
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017

R 201845 R 2017 &

6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (eEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETn ARBTT

Ho}
g
ez
R
2o

Wealth management products B

2,000 2,000
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14.

15.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRODUCTS
(Continued)

The wealth management products have a term of less
than one year and expected annual rate of return of
4.2%. Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices,
the wealth management products are principal
protected upon the maturity date.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
hEARS R4 A& SRR R
= 30 H
14. BEEBEER &)
BEEREINEROR—F  BEBE

BI¥RED4.2% - RIFEE@E QBB - &
EEEEMNIIHBERERE -

15. RERBSEEY

Restated

K&

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017

A 2018 & MN2017 5
65308 12 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (eEZ)
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTAS

178,132 156,249

At the end of reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB84,266,000 (2017: RMB89,972,000).The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RBER  AEBUARBIENR S
MR 1T 4 % A AR ¥ 84,266,000 7T (2017
& AR%89,972,0007T) ° ARBETEE
MARABHEMER - A RERBEAH
B HNE B TR A0 % AT - B TE M A IE B IR
RIE - AEBE B BERELEINEER
RIRITIEARK SR ABHMER o

FRRIRITHRERE B RITERA XD
SFBFREREUK B - SRITEER D IF S
BRI R BT R IR IRTT

TR B AR A ]/ RS 2018
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R HAR FA4R & BT A R R B 5

As at 30 June 2018 ;82018 F 6 4 30 H

16. TRADE PAYABLES 16. EZENRIA
An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of RPERR  BHENTBEIZREQHN
the Reporting Periods, based on the invoice date, is as BRES TR ¢
follows:
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017

MR 2018 F MN2017 5
65308 12 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&5 %)
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRE AR¥TR

Within 3 months 3EARA 40,643 53,660
3 to 12 months 3E 1218 A 2,574 2,719
Over 1 year Bid1F 2,147 1,989
45,364 58,368
The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing BEEMNZEAER  EW—MESE
and are normally settled on terms of 5 to 90 days. QO RERHAZEH -
17. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 17. ST ESRITER
As at 30 June 2018 As at 31 December 2017
7201856 A30H 2017412 A31H
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) RMB’000 (%) RMB’'000
BEREAE(%) AR®TT BEBEFMER®%) AR®ETT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (EZ)
Bank loans — unsecured #R1TE K — MK IR 5.00 10,000 5.00 5,000
10,000 5,000
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F EARS BR AR & BT B R M 5
[Ac5t30 une 2018 2015 = 6 % 50

18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. IR
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
M 2018 4 MR2017 4F
6H30H 12 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETn AREBTT
Authorised: JETE ¢
8,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 8,000,000,000 & F A% E &

each (2017: 8,000,000,000 shares 0.01 B ITHIMRD (2017 4 -

of HK$0.01 each) 8,000,000,000 i% = i% HE &
0.01 B LA %) 66,872 66,872

Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
405,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each 405,000,000 f% =A% m &
(2017: 400,000,000 shares of 0.01 BITAIAR ) (2017 £ -
HK$0.01 each) 400,000,000 iz &M EE

0.01 B THD) 3,391 3,349

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
27 July 2016 with authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each and one fully-paid subscriber share was
allotted and issued to the nominee of the Company
providing company secretarial services, who is an
independent third party. On 12 August 2016, the
Company allotted and issued 979 ordinary shares of
HKDO0.01 each to the Parent of the Company as fully
paid at par. On 24 October 2016, the Company issued
9,020 ordinary shares of HKDO0.01 each to the
shareholders of the Company as fully paid with a total
consideration of RMB60,750,000. The excess of
consideration over the par value of the Company’s
issued ordinary shares was credited to the share
premium. On 15 November 2017, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$80,000,000 by the creation of a
further 7,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

RNAFIR20165FE7 A27 BEMS B S+
KL RBERERBERAR ZFERAEAE
380,00078 7T * 9 /438,000,000 % & P I {E
0.01BITHRG » M— BB EREARS
BRELETT EREEQAFTNMWEREHN
ARBRBA(—BBIE=ZF) - R2016
F8H12H » ARAEIMARQTER R AR
NEE1TO79 I B AR EEO.01 B TR @A
WiREEARIIESZARFK - 122016 F 10
A24B RAGULEBREBARE
60,750,000 JTM A2 &) i 5 E17 9,020 i &
AEEEO.01B TR E B - W ABRIIES
RBR - RERARQRABRITEREBMNE
BB DT ARDRE - K2017F 11
A158 « K2R a8 8% E RS B 15 3% 58 o6
7,962,000,000 % & HE1E0.01 B LA IR 15
£ 380,000 7 JT 1 1 2 80,000,000 7T °

LA BRI A R A] R ERER s 2018
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T HAR RA 4R & B A5 R BT o

As at 30 June 2018 7320184

18.

19.

20.

A 30 H

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Company effected the capitalisation of share
premium into 299,990,000 ordinary shares by applying
HKD2,999,900, equivalent to RMB2,507,000, to pay up
in full at par for allotment and issue to the then existing
shareholders in proportion to their respective
shareholdings in the Company as of the date
immediately preceding the IPO successful listing. The
issued and fully paid ordinary shares of the Company
was deemed as 300,000,000 shares as at 31 December
2016.

On 11 December 2017, the Company issued
100,000,000 shares in its initial public offering at the
price of HKD1.55 per share. On 5 January 2018,the
Company issued additional 5,000,000 shares at the
price of HKD1.55 per share as result of exercise of over-
allotment options by the underwriters.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases its office buildings under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

Operating lease commitments

At 30 June 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
payables as follows:

18.

19.

20.

& NED)

NN B8 A FE B 2,999,900 7T (FHE R A
R #2,507,00070) IHHAEH B - 5
136 B I E AN JE A 299,990,000 A% 3@
f% ZEEBRIVEEEZE R ARBENX
WEMRAHERREBRRESERART
Z IR LL IR 1 BRI BT » B 20164
12 A31H » NARIE 817 MR T @AW
3 /300,000,000 fi% °

R2017F 12811 B KRB E XA
% E DL E RI1S5E T B K BT
100,000,000 f% A% 17 72201841 A5H -
ANARABHEEITEBERREMZSR’R
1.558 TLAYE 8 B TRESNS,000,000/% B {7 ©

HAERE
RIREER - ANEEWEEAKREE -
RiE

REHERE

AEBRBLEHELHHEER R BT -
MERENEBREHENF—E0F -

KEHERE

R2018F 6 A30H » AEBEIRET A
LEREmMEMNARRZERE N KR
I

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

R2018 & 72017

6 H30H 12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEX) (LEZ)

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR¥TT ARETx

Within one year —F R 1,260 1,260
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEERF(BEEERF) 630 1,260
1,890 2,520
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T HA B4R & I IS R Bﬁ

21. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH 21. B A &R ER S
RELATED PARTIES
(a) Particulars of the related parties which entered () AEEHREH IV EARDHRE
into material transactions with the Group are as T
follows:
Name Relationship Referred to as
28 B R [F
FERIERERAT Controlled by the Controlling  Pujiang Holding
Shareholders
EEEIERERA P 122 AR A PR 4 SHILIZERR
(b) 'I:ransactlons with related parties: (b) HEHHWRS
(i) Cash advances () Bawmx
Restated
K&
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017

M 201845 © 2017 4

6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REZR) (eEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR ARBTT

Related parties* BT *
Pujiang Holding HILIERR 2,100 30,112
* Cash advances to related parties are illustrated on * AR T IR & B LUREEIR o

a net basis.

T B AR A A]  hERERE 2018
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FHAR R 4R B M IS R R MY 5

21. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH 21. BB A ER RS (8)
RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties: (b) EHEEEANRE : (&)
(Continued)
(ii) Business combination under common (i) SHEZFINEKSHH
control
Restated
STl
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017

R 2018 % 2017 F

6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (& Z)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTT ARETT

Related parties REEE S
Pujiang Holding LI (3,110) -
(c) Due from a related party: () FEWPEEHIE
Restated
K&
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
M 2018 F 2017 &
6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fez&=%)
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AEETT ARBTE
Non-trade related FEZHE
Pujiang Holding p:pazdils - 2,100
The amount due from Pujiang Holding is JEYORITIERRIBEER - 2ER
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed payment MEEEERE o
terms.
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

21. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(d) Due to a related party:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R EARS ARAR & BT IS SRR I 7T
21. BB AERERS (&)

(d) BB RE !

Restated
K E5
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
R2018 & 2017 F
6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (f&&E%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERETT AREKTT
Non-trade related *E 518
Pujiang Holding pE:pa il - 3,110

The amount due to Pujiang Holding is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed payment terms.

(e) Compensation of key management

personnel of the Group:

JERDRITEBRRIBERSEER - 28K
B e E R

(e) XEEFEEBEABSEM :
For the six months

ended 30 June
HEZ6H30HLEAEAR

2018 2017

2018 2017 4F

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEX) (&%)

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR%®Trx

Short term employee benefits EHEE RN 1,545 1,661

Post-employment benefits BIRBERN 169 156
Total compensation paid to key ENFEERABETMERE

management personnel 1,714 1,817
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEME
AR HA 75 A

NTS

Air & B 53R R M et

As at 30 June 2018 ;82018 F 6 4 30 H

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 22. ZERESsERMITA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RIPEHKR S TENEREL
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T

period are as follows:

As at 30 June 2018 (Unaudited)

72018 6 B30 H (R&EEZ)

Financial assets SREE
Available-
for-sale Loans and
investments receivables Total
CIEE BRE
HERE e FRIE ST
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Tx AR%Tx
Available-for-sale investments At HERE - - -
Trade receivables H 5 WA - 86,553 86,553
Financial assets included in FFATENFIE - e &k
prepayments, deposits H At FE IR IA )
and other receivables SREE - 22,352 22,352
Restricted bank balances EﬁE%HfEﬁ - 13,046 13,046
Wealth management products ﬁﬁf@@uu - 2,000 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents Iﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ_ﬁﬁ% - 178,132 178,132
302,083 302,083
Financial liabilities k=R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
A5 BR
A=k
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Trade payables B 5N IR 45,364
Financial liabilities included in other payables HAEMEATIE R EETE B
and accruals MemAaE 33,802
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITIERK 10,000
89,166
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 B R AR AR & B 1% R B AT

As at 30 June 2018 782018 F 6 4 30 H

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 22. HEEE SR T A B
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RIPEER  SERNS T EMNEREND
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T

period are as follows:

As at 31 December 2017 (Audited) A2017 €12 B31 B (BEX)
Financial assets (Restated) SREE (KEY))
Available-
for-sale Loans and
investments receivables Total
GRS EXK
HERE W k1A st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTIT ARBTT ARETET

Available-for-sale investments At HERE - - -

Trade receivables %”%TH&Z* - 56,972 56,972
Financial assets included in STATEMNTUE - RE R
prepayments, deposits EWEM&WQE@
and other receivables SREE - 74,294 74,294
Amount due from a JFE Ui B Gt 5 R IR
related party - 2,100 2,100
Restricted bank balances TR HRITEE A - 17,084 17,084
Wealth management products 8= B E @ - 2,000 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents HWERRESEBY - 156,249 156,249
- 308,699 308,699
Financial liabilities (Restated) cResE(KEY)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FX B BR
MEaE
RMB’000
AREFTT
Trade payables Z S IR 58,368
Financial liabilities included in other payables HAEMENZIBERESER
and accruals MEBBE 44,917
Amount due to a related party FEAS BRES 75 kI8 3,110
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITIERK 5,000
111,395
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T HAR RA 4R & B A5 R BT o

As at 30 June 2018 7320184

23.

24,

25.

A 30 H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, wealth
management products, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the
management.

COMPARATIVE FIGURE

On 26 April 2018, the Group obtained 100% equity
interests in Shanghai Bund Ke Pu Engineering
Management Company Limited (“Kepu”) from Pujiang
Holding. Since Kepu was controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders, the acquisition was a business
combination under common control. The comparative
information which includes the consolidated statement
of financial position, the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the comparative
period are re-presented as if Kepu had been combined
at the beginning of the comparative period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There is no significant event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 30 June 2018.

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED / INTERIM REPORT 2018

23.

24.

25.

EMIENQAFERATFESFR

EEECHERELREFEY IR
RITHER - MEEEEM - EHRUIEEUA -
EHRNFIE - StARNFE  RE LA
i EBRIEN S REE 5T AHMERR
BEREFEANSBRAE FERTER
MAFEEEREERS  TE2HRNZE
TARGHARIE -

AEBEVBHHMBEIERE BEEE
CRMIEAERTEFAEBOBRELER - RE
BEBH KA Tem T ANEEE
PRETEARGENEIERARE - {
EXAYBHREFZIIE - EEEMG
B RAERETHR

e T

7201844 A26 B A B RITRBER
B LESNERE TIRARA A (AR )
1009 Bt o £ 3T el FRARBR SR 1 - Ui
BB SR TR A B - SELRA
B REGEHBRE  GAREREE
W% HAEEEBHRREARSTE
% - UREBBRNSARBRENE)E
FH 25 RIMBORR R AR B RS D

P P

WMERESH
RATIHANEBFR 20186 A30 B2
EITEMEAREN -
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